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assistance.
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To: Masuda,Funai,Eifert & Mitchell, Ltd.
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Pleasetakenoticethat on this 23rdday ofOctober2003,this law firm filed with the
Clerkof theIllinois Pollution ControlBoarda Citizen’sComplaintonbehalfofMate
Technologies,Inc. A copyof thecomplaintis attachedandserveduponyou.

Failureto file an answerto thiscomplaintwithin 60 daysmayhavesevereconsequences.
Failureto answerwill meanthat all allegationsin thecomplaintwill be takenasif admittedfor
purposesofthis proceeding.If you have,anyquestionsaboutthis procedure,you shouldcontact
thehearingofficerassignedto thisproceeding,theClerk’s Office oranattorney. 35 Ill. Adm.
Code§103.204(f).

MATE TECHNOLOGIES,iNC.

By:

CareyS. Rosemarin(Atty. No. 6181911)
Law OfficesofCareyS. Rosemarin,P.C.
500 Skokie Boulevard,Suite510
Northbrook,IL 60062
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COMPLAINT

Statementofthe Case

1. MateTechnologies,Inc. (“Mate”) by its undersignedattorney,brings this Citizen’s

Complaintfor injunctive relief andcostrecoveryunderSection31(d)oftheIllinois

EnvironmentalProtectionAct (the“Act”). 415 ILCS 5/31(d). Mate allegesthatF.I.C. America

Corporation(“FIC”) hasviolatedfundamentalrequirementsofIllinois’ usedoil regulations,solid

wasteregulationsandhazardouswasteregulations.MatealsoallegesthatFTC hasviolatedthe

statutoryprohibitionson indiscriminatewastehandling,air pollutionandwaterpollution. FIC

actedin total disregardof Illinois’ plenarystatutoryandregulatorystructure,which is designedto

assureenvironmentallysoundmanagementof wastes.FIC therebyviolatednumerousprovisions

ofIllinois environmentallaw.-

Parties

2. Mate is an Illinois corporationhavingits principalplaceofbusinessat 1695ToddFarm
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Drive, Elgin, Illinois. At all relevanttimes,Mateownedthepropertylocatedat 750 Rohlwing

Roadin Itasca,Illinois, includinga52,800square-footbuilding situatedthereon(the“Property”).

As a corporation,Mate is a“person”within themeaningof 415 ILCS 5/3.26.

3. FTC is an Illinois corporation.Oninformationandbelief, FTC hasits principalplaceof

businessat 485 EastLiesRoad, in CarolStream,Illinois, andis awholly-ownedsubsidiaryof

FutabaIndustrialCo., Ltd., ofOkazaki,Japan.As acorporation,FTC is a“person”within the

meaningof4l5 ILCS 5/3.26.

RelevantFacts

4. Beginningin March 2002,FIC continuouslyoperatedthePropertyfor thepurposeof

manufacturingautomobilecomponents.On informationandbelief,suchmanufacturing

consistedprimarily ofwelding andotherprocesses,in whichmetalis fashionedinto automobile

mufflersandotherparts.

5. Oninformationandbelief, themetalthatFTC usesasafeedstockis coatedwith oil, and

FTC’s operationshavecausedvastquantitiesofsuchoil to disseminateuncontrolledon andabout

thePropertyandto be releasedinto theenvironment. On informationandbelief, such

disseminationoccursdirectly, asit doeswhentheoil-coatedsurfacesareimpactedduring

stampingand/orsimilar operations,causing,oil dropletsto scatter.And, on informationand

belief, it occursindirectly,asit doeswhenextremeheatis appliedto theoil-coatedsurfaces

duringwelding,thuscausingtheoil to vaporizeandsubsequentlycondenseon virtually all

surfacesin andout ofthebuilding. Additionally, on informationandbelief, FTC’s operations

havecausedsomeor all oftheoil to becomecontaminatedwith chromiumandothermetals.

6. Theair within thebuilding on thePropertyis circulatedby theheating,ventilatingandair
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conditioning(“HVAC”) system. TheHVAC systemcollectsairwithin thebuilding, directsit

throughanumberoffilters, and emitssomeair to theexterior.

7. FTC hasat all times failed to containor in any waycontroltheoil disseminatedfrom its

operations.As adirectresult,theoil hasbeenreleasedinto theenvironmentby virtueof its

escapethroughwindows,doorsandotheropeningsin thebuilding andvia stormsewerson the

Property. It hasalsobeeninhaledby personson andabouttheProperty. And it hassettledon

surfacesthroughouttheProperty,coatingthemwith ablackfilm.

8. Virtually all oftheoil contaminationremainingon ‘the Propertyresultsfrom FTC’s

manufacturingoperations.At thecommencementofFTC’s operationoftheProperty,the interior

ofthebuildingon thePropertywasfreshlypainted.

9. Mateexpressedits concernaboutenvironmentalconditionsat andaboutthePropertyas

earlyasJune18,2003,andrequestedcopiesofany correspondencebetweenFTC andany

governmentagencypertainingto thereleaseof hazardoussubstancesat theProperty. FTC did not

respondto this request.Rather,on informationandbelief,FTC subsequently“pressurewashed”

someareasaffectedby theoil contaminationandpaintedoversurfaceswithout removingall of

thecontamination.

10. On atleastone occasion,October1, 2003,FIC conductedsuchpressurewashingand

disposedof theresultingrinsatein thestorm sewerson theProperty.

11. Mate’s representativesinspectedthePropertyon oraboutSeptember8, 2003 and

collectedsamplesof thedisseminatedoil on theProperty. Oninformationandbelief,the

samplesoftheoil wererepresentativeofthematerial generatedby FTC’ s operationsthroughout

theentiretime it operatedtheProperty. Thesamplesweresubmittedfor laboratoryanalysis.
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12. Theanalyticalresultsshowedthe following:

i) waterin thestormsewercontainedmetals(includingtotal chromiumat 0.15mg/L) and

polynucleararomatichydrocarbons(includingbenzo(a)pyrene,aknown carcinogen,at0.02

mg/L);

ii) oil on an exposedwall (thathadnotbeenpaintedover) containingtotal petroleum

hydrocarbons(“TPH,” including3.9 mg/wipeofoil);

iii) oil on anexposedwall (thathadnotbeenpaintedover) containingmetals(including

total chromiumatup to 3,000ug/ft2);

iii) oil on oneofthefilters from theHVAC systemcontainingtotalpetroleum

hydrocarbons(including 3.9mg/wipeofoil);

iv) oil on oneofthefilters from theHVAC systemcontainingmetals(includingtotal

chromiumat21,000mg/kg,andchromiumdeterminedby thetoxic chemicalleachingprocedure

(“TCLP”) at 7.2 mg/L, respectively);and

v) oil on oneof thefilters from theHVAC systemcontainingtotal halogens(including

extractableorganichalogensat2,150mg/kgandchloride at4,000mg/kg).

13. Theblackfilm is visible on surfacesthroughoutthebuilding. It remainsathreatto the

healthandtheenvironmentbecauseevento theextentthattheoil hasbeentemporarilycoated

with paint, theoil will haveto be removedandproperlydisposedin accordancewith applicable

regulationsat afuturedate.
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COUNT I
(Violation of35 IlL Adm. CodePart 739,

Used Oil Storage)

14. MatereallegesParagraphs1 through13, above,asif fully set forth in this CountI.

15. Part739,’ containingthe“Standardsfor theManagementof UsedOil,” defines“used oil”

as“any oil thathasbeenrefinedfrom crudeoil, oranysyntheticoil, thathasbeenusedandas a

resultofsuchuseis contaminatedbyphysicalorchemicalimpurities.” §739.100.

16. Laboratoryanalysisofa wipesampleoffilm on oneof thewalls showsthatit hadaTPH

contentof 3.9mg/wipe ofoil, thusdemonstratingthesubstancecomprisingthefilm wasrefined

from crudeoil.

17. Additional laboratoryanalysesof wipe samplesofthefilm on thewalls alsodemonstrate

that theoil containsphysicalorchemicalimpurities,notablymetals. On informationandbelief,

FTC usedtheoil on themetalfeedstockto preventcorrosion.Further,on informationandbelief,

theoil becamecontaminatedwith metalsduring FIC’s industrialoperations.Therefore,FTC’s

useoftheoil causedit to becomecontaminatedby physicalor chemicalimpurities,andtheoil

thatwasdisseminatedin and aroundthePropertyis “usedoil” within themeaningof§739.100.

18. Part 739definesa “usedoil generator”as“any person,by site,whoseactorprocess

producesusedoil orwhoseactfirst causesusedoil to becomesubjectto regulation.” §739.100.

FTC is ausedoil generatorbecause,on informationandbelief, its actsfirst causedtheoil on the’

metalto comewithin the definition of “usedoil,” andthusbecomesubjectto Part 739.

For convenience,citationshavebeenabbreviatedin thetext to includeonly numbersof
regulatorypartsandsections;andunlessotherwisenoted,citationsreferto 35 Ill. Adm. Code.
(E.g.,“Part 739” refersto 35111.Adm. Code,Part739, and“~720.110”refersto 35111.Adm.
Code§720.110.)
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19. Part739 incorporatesthedefinitionsin §720.110. § 739.100. Additionally, theAct

defines“waste,” in pertinentpart,as“discardedmaterial,includingsolid, liquid, semi-solid,or

containedgaseousmaterialresultingfrom industrial,commercial,miningandagricultural

operations.” 415 ILCS 5/3.53. FIC’s disseminatedusedoil wasdiscardedmaterial,andthus

wastewithin themeaningof 415TLCS 5/3.53.

20. “Storage”is definedas“theholdingofhazardouswastefor atemporaryperiod,at theend

ofwhich thehazardouswasteis treated,disposedof, or storedelsewhere.” §720.110. FIC’s

wantondisseminationofusedoil into theenvironmentand in andaroundtheProperty(andin

andon theindividuals thereon),constitutes“storage”underthis definition.

21. Alternatively, theAct defines“storage”as“the containmentofwaste,eitheron a

temporarybasisor for aperiodofyears,in suchmannerasnot to constitutedisposal.” 415 ILCS

5/3.46. FTC’s wantondisseminationofusedoil into theenvironmentandin andaroundthe

Property(andin and on theindividuals thereon),constituted“storage”within themeaningof

415 ILCS 5/3.46.

22. Part739 statesthat“usedoil generatorsshall not storeusedoil in unitsotherthantanks,

containers,orunits subjectto regulationunder35 Ill. Adm. Code724 or725.” §739.122(a).

Part739 defines“tank” as“anystationarydevice,designedto containanaccumulationofused

oil which is constructedprimarily of non-earthenmaterials(e.g.wood,concrete,steel,plastic)

whichprovidesstructuralsupport.” §739.100. Part739 defines“container” as“any portable

devicein which amaterialis stored,transported,treated,disposedof, orotherwisehandled.”

§739.100. Theunits subjectto regulationunderParts724 or725 includeitemssuchassurface

impoundments,wastepiles,andincinerators;theydo not includetheatmosphere,sewers,
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exposedsurfaces,orpeople.Noneof the locationsin, oronwhich FTC storedits usedoil wasa

tank,container,orunit subjectto regulationunderParts724 or725. Therefore,FIC violated

§739.122(a).

Prayer for Relief: Count I

WHEREFORE,ComplainantMaterespectfullyrequeststhatthisBoardgrantthe

following relief:

A. Find thatRespondentFTC hasviolated§739.122(a);

B. OrdertheRespondentto ceaseanddesistfrom furtherviolation oftheAct and

associatedregulations;

C. OrdertheRespondentto remediatethePropertyandlawfully removeall usedoil

from any and all areasin or on which it hasbeenstoredin violation of§739.122(a);

D. Award Complainantall costsit hasincurredin investigatingtheeffectsof FTC’s

usedoil handlingpractices. (Forpurposesofthis Citizens’ Complaintonly, suchcostsarenot

intendedto includeattorneys’fees.)

E. AssessagainsttheRespondenta monetarypenaltyofup to fifty thousanddollars

($50,000)for eachviolation of§739.122(a),andup to anadditionaltenthousanddollars

($10,000)for eachdaythattheviolation hascontinued.

F. Grantsuchotherandfurtherrelief asthis Boarddeemsappropriate.

COUNT II -

(Violation of 35 Iii. Adm. CodePart 739,
UsedOil Disposal)

23. MatereallegesParagraphs1 through19, above,asif fully setforth in this CountIT.
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24. TheUnitedStatesEnvironmentalProtectionAgencypresumesthatusedoil is to be

recycledunlessausedoil handlerdisposesofusedoil, orsendsusedoil for disposal.

§739.110(a).To theextentthatausedoil generatordisposesofusedoil, thatpersonmustdo so

in compliancewith Part739, SubpartI. §739.120(b)(5).

25, UnderPart739, SubpartI, usedoil that is hazardousmustbedisposedin compliancewith

thehazardouswastemanagementrequirementsof Parts703, 720 through726, and728.

§739.181(a).Andusedoil that is nothazardousmustbe disposedin accordancewith Parts807

through815 and40 CFRParts257 and258. §739.181(b).FTC utterly disregardedthe

requirementsof Part739, SubpartI, particularly§739.181.

Hazardous usedoil

26. Thehazardouswasteregulationsdefine“solid waste” as“any discardedmaterialthat is

not excludedby Section721.104(a)or that is not excludedpursuantto 35 Ill. Adm. Code

720.130and720.131.” §72l.102(a)(l).

27. A materialis “discarded”if it is abandoned.§721.102(a)(2).And amaterialis asolid

wasteif it is abandonedby being “accumulated,stored,ortreated(butnot recycled)beforeor in

lieu ofbeingabandonedby beingdisposedof, burnedor incinerated.” §721(b)(3).By its wanton

emissionoftheusedoil into theatmosphere,into thestormsewersinto andon individuals,and

on andabouttheProperty,andleavingit thereunattended,FTC hasaccumulatedandstoredthe

usedoil asstatedin §721(b)(3).Therefore,FTC’s usedoil wasa “discardedmaterial” andthusa

“solid waste”within themeaningof~721.l02(a)(1).

28. A solidwaste,asdefinedin §721.102,is a “hazardouswaste” if “it exhibitsanyof the

characteristicsof hazardouswasteidentifiedin SubpartC ofthis Part[721].” §72l.103(a)(2)(A).
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Further,under§721.124,which is partof SubpartC, asolidwasteis ahazardouswasteif it

containsany of thecontaminantslisted in §721.124(b)in theirrespectivethreshold

concentrations.§721.124(a).

29. Someor all oftheusedoil generatedby FIC washazardousbecauseit exhibitedthe

toxicity characteristicofhazardouswaste. It contained7.2 mg/L ofchromiumasdeterminedby

theTCLP test,thusexceedingthe,thresholdconcentrationof 5.0mg/L setforth in §721.124(b).

Therefore,FTC’s usedoil wasahazardouswastewithin themeaningof§721.103(a)(2)(A).

30. Part720 definesdisposalas“the discharge,deposit,injection,dumping,spilling, leaking,

orplacingofanysolidwasteorhazardouswasteinto oron any landorwatersothat suchsolid

wasteorhazardouswasteor any constituentthereofmayentertheenvironmentorbeemittedinto

theair or dischargedinto anywater,includinggroundwaters.”§720.110. FTC’s wanton

disseminationofusedoil in andaroundtheProperty,its dischargeof rinsatecontainingusedoil

into thestorm sewer,andits emissionofusedoil into theatmosphere,separatelyand

collectively,constituteddisposalwithin themeaningof §720.110.

31. Part703prohibits any personfrom conductingany hazardouswastestorageordisposal

operationat afacility for whichapermit hasnotbeenissuedundertheResourceConservation

andRecoveryAct (“RCRA”). §703.121(a).

32. A “facility” is defined,in pertinentpart,as“all contiguouslandandstructures,other

appurtenances,andimprovementson thelandusedfor treating,storing, ordisposingof

hazardouswaste.” §720.110. FTC usedthePropertyfor storinganddisposingofhazardous

waste. Therefore,thePropertyconstitutesa “facility” within themeaningof §720.110.

33. Oninformation andbelief, FTC did not obtainaRCRA permitfor theProperty.
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Therefore,FTC’s disposalof hazardoususedoil wasteon andaboutthePremisesviolated

§703.121(a),and thusviolated§739.181(a).

Non-hazardousused oil

34. Alternatively,someof theusedoil generatedby FTC wasnon-hazardous,andthuscould

only be disposedin accordancewith Parts807 through8l5~§739.181(b).

35. TherequirementsofParts810through817 were intendedto supersedetherequirements

of Part807, andpersonsandfacilitiessubjectto Parts810through817 arenot subjectto Part

807. §807.105(c).FTC is subjectto Part815, pertainingto certainlandfills, andis thusnot

subjectto Part807.

36. Thedefinitionsin §810.103applytoPart815. §810.101.

37. Part810 defines“solid waste” to include“specialwaste,”which in turn, includes

“industrial processwaste.” §810.103. TheAct defines“industrialprocesswaste,” in pertinent

part,as“any liquid, solid, semi-solid,or gaseouswastegeneratedasa director indirectresultof

themanufactureof aproductor theperformanceofaservice.” 415 ILCS 5/3.17. TheAct

defines“waste,” in pertinentpart,as“discardedmaterial,includingsolid, liquid, semi-solid,or

containedgaseousmaterialresultingfrom industrial,commercial,mining andagricultural

operations.” 415 ILCS 5/3.53. FTC generatedtheusedoil asadirect resultofmanufacturing

automobileparts,anddiscardedit by wantonlydisseminatingit throughoutthePropertyand

releasingit into theenvironment.Therefore,FTC’susedoil is an industrialprocesswaste,andas

such,it is alsoa specialwasteandasolidwastewithin themeaningof §810.103.

38. Part810defines“disposal” in pertinentpart,asfollows: “If thesolidwasteis

accumulatedandnot confinedor containedto preventits entryinto theenvironment,orthereis
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no certainplanfor its disposalelsewhere,suchaccumulationshall constitutedisposal.”

§810.103. FTC’s wantondisseminationof its usedoil on andabouttheProperty,aswell asinto

theatmosphereandthestormsewersconstitutes“accumulationandfailureto confine” within the

meaningofthis definition. Additionally, on informationandbelief, FTC hadno certainplan for

thedisposalof theusedoil elsewhere.Therefore,FTC’sdisseminationoftheusedoil on and

aboutthePropertyandinto theatmosphereand stormsewersconstitutesdisposalunder

§810.103.

39. Part810 definesa “landfill,” in pertinentpart,as“a unit or partof a facility in oron

which wasteis placedand accumulatedovertime for disposal,andwhich is not a land

applicationunit, a surfaceimpoundmentoran undergroundinjection well.” §810.103.

A. Part810 definesa “unit” asa “contiguousareausedfor solid wastedisposal.”

§ 810.103. Therefore,theProperty,asoperatedby FTC, is a“unit” within themeaningof

§810.103.

B. Part810 definesa “facility” as“a “site andall equipmentandfixtureson asite

usedto treat,storeor disposeof solid or specialwastes.A facility consistsofanentiresolid or

specialwastetreatment,storageor disposaloperation. All structuresusedin connectionwith or

to facilitatethewastedisposaloperationshallbeconsideredapartofthefacility. A facility may

include,but is not limited to, oneor moresolidwastedisposalunits,buildings,treatment

systems,processingandstorageoperations,andmonitoring stations.” §810.103. FTC’s disposal

of its usedoil wasteon andaboutthePropertycausedthePropertyto becomea “facility” within

themeaning‘of §810.103.

C. Part 810definesa “land applicationunit” in pertinentpartas“anareawhere
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wastesareagronomicallyspreadoveror diskedinto landorotherwiseappliedso asto become

incorporatedinto thesoil surface.” TheProperty,asoperatedby FTC, is not a landapplication

unitwith themeaningof§ 810.103.

D. Part810definessurfaceimpoundment,in pertinentpart,as“a naturaltopographic

depression,aman-madeexcavation,or adikedarea....” §810.103. ThePropertyis nota

surfaceimpoundmentwithin themeaningof § 810.103.

E. ThePropertyis not, anddoesnot contain,anundergroundinjectionwell.

40. FTC’s wantondissemination,placementandaccumulationofusedoil wastethroughout

thePropertyhascausedthePropertyto fall within thescopeofthedefinition of “landfill” as

definedin §810.103.

41. Part815 containsproceduralrequirementsfor all landfills exemptfrom therequirement

to obtain a permit under 415 TLCS 5/21(d), which reads, in pertinent part,” . . . no permit shall be

requiredfor. . . any personconductingawaste-storage,waste-treatment,orwaste-disposal

operationfor wastesgeneratedby suchperson’sownactivitieswhich arestored,treated,or

disposedwithin thesitewheresuchwastesaregenerated...”

42. TheAct defines“site” as“any location,place,tractof land,andfacilities,includingbut

not limited to buildings,andimprovementsusedfor purposessubjectto regulationorcontrolby

this Act or regulations thereunder.” 415 ILCS 5/3.45. FTC’s use of the Property for generation,

storage and disposal of used oil waste caused the Property to be subject to regulation and control

by theAct andregulationsthereunder.Therefore,thePropertyis a “site” within themeaningof

theAct. ‘

43. Pursuantto 415 ILCS 5/21(d),FTC was‘exemptfrom therequirementto obtainapermit,
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becauseFTC storedanddisposedits usedoil wasteson thesamesiteatwhich FTC generatedsuch

wastes.AndbecauseFTC causedthePropertyto becomealandfill within themeaningof

§810.103, the Property becamesubjectto Part815.

44. Part 815 requires that “all landfills regulated under this Part shall file an initial facility

report with the Agency as specified in this Subpart to provide information concerning location

and disposal practices of the facility.” §815.201.

45. Oninformation and belief, FTChas not filed the report required by §815.201, and

therefore, has violated §815.201. In so doing, it has violated §739.181(b).

Prayer for Relief: Count II

WHEREFORE,ComplainantMaterespectfullyrequeststhatthis Boardgrantthe

following relief:

A. Find thatRespondentFTC hasviolated§739.181and;

B. OrdertheRespondentto ceaseanddesistfrom furtherviolation of theAct and

associatedregulations;

C. OrdertheRespondentto remediatethePropertyandlawfully removeall usedoil

from any andall areasin or on which it hasbeendisposedin violation of §739.181;

D. Award Complainant all costs it has incurred in investigating the effects of FIC’s

used oil handling practices. (For purposes of this Citizens’ Complaint only, such costs are not

intended to include attorneys’ fees.)

E. Assess against the Respondent a monetary penalty of up to fifty thousand dollars

($50,000) for each violation of,~739. 181(a), and up to an additional ten thousand dollars

($10,000) for each day that the violation has continued.
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F. GrantsuchotherandfurtherreliefasthisBoarddeemsappropriate.

COUNT III
(Violation of 35 Iii. Adm. CodePart 815: Solid WasteDisposal)

46. MatereallegesParagraphs1 through21, and34 through44, above,asif fully set forth in

this CountIII.

47. On informationandbelief, FTC hasnot filed thereportrequiredby §815.201,and

therefore,hasviolated§815.201.

Prayer for Relief: Count III

WHEREFORE,ComplainantMaterespectfullyrequeststhatthis Boardgrantthe

following relief:

A. Find thatRespondentFTC hasviolated§815.201;

B. OrdertheRespondentto ceaseanddesistfrom furtherviolation of theAct and

associated regulations;

C. ‘OrdertheRespondentto remediatethePropertyandlawfully removeall usedoil

from any andall areasin or on which it hasbeendisposedin violation of §815.201;

D. Award Complainantall costsit hasincurredin investigatingtheeffectsofFIC’s

wastehandlingpractices.(Forpurposesofthis Citizens’ Complaintonly, suchcostsarenot

intendedto includeattorneys’fees.) ‘ ‘

E. AssessagainsttheRespondentamonetarypenaltyofup to fifty thousanddollars

($50,000)for eachviolation of§815.201,andup to an additionaltenthousanddollars($10,000)

for eachdaythat theviolation hascontinued.

F. Grantsuchotherandfurtherreliefasthis Boarddeemsappropriate.
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COUNT TV
(Violation of35 Ill. Adm. CodePart 722: HazardousWaste Generation)

48. MatereallegesParagraphs1 through17, above,asif fully setforth in this CountIV.

49. Part 739 identifiescertaintypesofusedoil thatarenot regulatedby Part739,but rather

by otherpartsofIllinois’ plenarywasteregulatorystructure.In particular,mixturesofusedoil

andhazardouswastesthatare listed inPart721, SubpartD, areregulatedunderParts703,720

through726, and728. §739.110(b).

50. Part739 establishesarebuttablepresumptionthatusedoil containingmorethan 1,000

ppmhalogenshasbeenmixed with suchalisted hazardouswaste. §739.110(b)(1)(B).

51. Someor all ofFTC’s usedoil containedmorethan 1,000ppmtotal halogensandwas

thereforesubjectto regulationasahazardouswasteunderParts703 and720 through726.

§739.1l0(b)(1)(A).

52. Part 722requirespersonswhogeneratesolidwaste,asdefinedin §721.102,to determine

if thatwasteis hazardous.§722.111.

53. MatereallegesParagraph26, above,asif fully setforth in this CountIV.

54. MatereallegesParagraph27, above,as if fully setforth in this CountIV.

55. TheAct defines“generator”as“any personwhoseactoro processproduceswaste.” 415

ILCS 5/3.12. FTC’sprocessesproducedwasteoil andthereforeFTC wasa generatorofwaste.

But, on informationandbelief, FTC did not determineif its solidwastewashazardous.FTC thus

violated§722.111.

Prayer for Relief: Count TV

WHEREFORE,ComplainantMaterespectfullyrequeststhat this Boardgrantthe

following relief:

15



A. Find thatRespondentFIC hasviolated§722.111;

B. OrdertheRespondentto ceaseand desistfrom furtherviolation oftheAct and

associated regulations;

C. OrdertheRespondentto remediatethePropertyandlawfully removeall

hazardoususedoil wastefrom any andall areasin oron which it hasbeenimproperlystoredor

disposedasaresultof its violation of §722.111;

D. Award Complainantall costsit hasincurredin investigatingtheeffectsofFTC’s

wastehandlingpractices.(For purposesofthis Citizens’Complaintonly, suchcostsarenot

intendedto includeattorneys’fees.)

E. AssessagainsttheRespondentamonetarypenaltyofup to twenty-fivethousand

dollars ($25,000)for eachday thatFTC violated §722.111.

F. Grantsuchotherandfurtherrelief asthis Boarddeemsappropriate.

COUNT V
(Violation of35 Ill. Adm. CodePart 722: Hazardous WasteStorage)

56. MatereallegesParagraphs48 through51, andParagraphs26 and27, above,asif fully set

forth in thisCountV.

57. A “generator”is definedas“any person,by site,whoseact orprocessproduceshazardous

wasteidentifiedor listedin 35 Ill. Adm. Code721 orwhoseactfirst causesa hazardouswasteto

becomesubjectto regulation.” §721.110. FTC is ageneratorof hazardouswastebecause,on

informationandbelief, its industrialprocessesfirst causedthehazardouswasteto become

subjectto regulation.

58. “A generatorthataccumulateshazardouswastefor morethan 90 daysis anoperatorof a
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sbragefacility andis subjectto therequirementsof35 Ill. Adm. Code724 and725 andthe

permitrequirementsof35 Ill. Adm. Code702, 703 and705.. . .“ §722.134(b).Oninformation

andbelief, FTC hasaccumulatedhazardouswastethroughoutthePropertyfor morethan90 days.

59. MatereallegesParagraphs31 and32, above,asif fully set forth in this CountyV.

60. Oninformationandbelief, FIC did not obtainaRCRApermit fortheProperty.

Therefore,FTC’s storageof hazardouswasteon andaboutthePremisesviolated§703.121(a).

Prayer for Relief: Count V

WHEREFORE,ComplainantMaterespectfullyrequeststhatthisBoardgrantthe

following relief:

A. Find thatRespondentFTC hasviolated§703.121(a);

B. OrdertheRespondentto ceaseanddesistfrom furtherviolation oftheAct and

associatedregulations;

C. OrdertheRespondentto remediatethePropertyandremoveall hazardoususedoil

wastefrom anyandall areasin or onwhich it hasbeenstoredin violation of§ 703.121(a);

D. Award Complainantall costsit hasincurredin investigatingthe effectsofFIC’s

wastehandlingpractices. (Forpurposesof this Citizens’ Complaintonly, suchcostsarenot -

intendedto includeattorneys’fees.)

E. AssessagainsttheRespondentamonetarypenaltyofup to twenty-five thousand

dollars ($25,000)for eachdaythat FTC violated §703.121(a).

F. Grantsuchotherand furtherreliefasthis Boarddeemsappropriate.
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COUNT VI

(Violation of 35 Ill. Adm. CodePart 722: Hazardous WasteDisposal)

61. MatereallegesParagraphs48 through51, Paragraphs26 and27, andParagraphs30

through32, above,asif fully setforth in this CountVI.

62. Oninformationandbelief, FTC did not obtainaRCRApermit for theProperty.

Therefore,FTC’s disposalofhazardouswasteon andaboutthePremisesviolated§703.121(a).

Prayer for Relief: Count VI

WHEREFORE,ComplainantMaterespectfullyrequeststhatthisBoardgrantthe

following relief:

A. Find thatRespondentFTC hasviolated§703.121(a);

B. OrdertheRespondentto ceaseanddesistfrom furtherviolationoftheAct and

associatedregulations; -

C. OrdertheRespondentto remediatethePropertyandremoveall hazardoususedoil

wastefrom any and all areasin or on which it hasbeendisposedin violation of §703.121(a);

D. AwardComplainantall costsit hasincurredin investigatingtheeffectsof FIC’s

wastehandlingpractices.(Forpurposesofthis Citizens’Complaintonly, suchcostsarenot

intendedto includeattorneys’fees.) -

E. AssessagainsttheRespondentamonetarypenaltyofup to twenty-five thousand

dollars($25,000)for eachdaythat FTC violated §703.121(a).

F. GrantsuchotherandfurtherreliefasthisBoarddeemsappropriate.
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COUNT VII

(Violation of 415 ILCS 5/21(e): Statutory Prohibition of WasteStorageand Disposal)

63. MatereallegesParagraphs1 through13,above,asif fully set forth in this CountVII.

64. TheAct’s prohibition ofuncontrolledwastestorageanddisposalstates,in pertinentpart,

Nopersonshall...

(e) Dispose,treat,storeor abandonany waste,or transportany wasteinto this
Statefor disposal,treatment,storageorabandonment,exceptat asiteorfacility
whichmeetstherequirementsof this Act andofregulationsandstandards
thereunder.

415 ILCS 5/21(e).

65. MatereallegesParagraph21, above,asif fully setforth in this CountVII.

66. TheAct defines“disposal” as“the discharge,deposit,injection,dumping,spilling,

leakingorplacingof anywasteorhazardouswasteinto oron any landor wateror intoanywell

sothatsuchwasteorhazardouswasteorany constituentthereofmayenterthe environmentorbe’

emitfedinto theairor dischargedinto anywaters,includinggroundwaters. 415 ILCS 5/3.08.

FTC’s wantondisseminationofusedoil into theenvironmentandin andaroundtheProperty(and

in andon theindividualsthereon),constitutes“disposal”underthis definition.

67. MatereallegesParagraphs37 through44, above,asif fully setforth in this CountVII.

68. On informationandbelief, FTC hasnot filed thereportrequiredby §815.201,and

therefore,hasviolated §815.201.

69. Therefore,FTC hasviolated415 TLCS 5/21(e)by disposingof wastesat afacility that

doesnotmeettherequirementsofthis Act and ofregulationsandstandardsthereunder.

Prayer for Relief: Count VII

WHEREFORE,ComplainantMaterespectfullyrequeststhatthisBoardgrantthe
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following relief:

A. Find thatRespondentFIC hasviolated 415 TLCS 5/21(e);

B. OrdertheRespondentto ceaseanddesistfrom furtherviolationof theAct and

associatedregulations;

C. OrdertheRespondentto remediatethePropertyandlawfully removeall usedoil

wastefrom any andall areasin oronwhich it hasbeenstoredand/ordisposedin violation of415

TLCS 5/21(e);

D. Award Complainant all costs it has incurred in investigating the effects of FTC’s

wastehandlingpractices. (ForpurposesofthisCitizens’ Complaintonly, suchcostsarenot

intendedto includeattorneys’fees.)

E. AssessagainsttheRespondenta monetarypenaltyofup to fifty thousanddollars

($50,000)for eachviolationof415 TLCS 5/21(e),andup to anadditionaltenthousanddollars

($10,000)for eachday thatthe violation hascontinued.

F. Grantsuchotherandfurtherreliefasthis Boarddeemsappropriate

COUNT VIII
(Violation of 415 ILCS 5/9(a): Statutory Prohibition of Air Pollution)

70. MatereallegesParagraphs-1 through13, above,as if fully set forth in thisCountVTTT.

71. TheAct states,inpertinentpart,asfollows:

Nopersonshall:

(a) Causeor threatenorallow thedischargeor emissionof anycontaminantinto the
environmentin any Statesoasto causeor tendto causeair pollution in Illinois, either
aloneor in combinationwith contaminantsfrom othersources,orso asto violate
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regulationsorstandardsadoptedbytheBoardunderthis Act.

415 ILCS 5/9(a).

72. TheAct defines“contaminant”as“any solid, liquid, orgaseousmatter,anyodor,orany

form ofenergy,from whateversource.” 415 TLCS 5/3.06. Theoil generatedby FTC’s industrial

processesis a“contaminant”within themeaningoftheAct.

73. TheAct defines“air pollution” as“the presencein theatmosphereofoneor more

contaminantsin sufficientquantitiesandofsuchcharacteristicsanddurationasto be injuriousto

human,plant, oranimallife, to health,or to property,or to unreasonablyinterferewith the

enjoymentof life orproperty.” 415 ILCS 5/3.02. Theoil emittedto theatmosphereby FTC’s

industrialoperationshasinjuredthePropertyby causingareasofthepropertyto be coatedwith a

blackfilm. For thesamereason,it hasalsounreasonablyinterferedwith theenjoymentofthe

Property. FIC’s emissionofoil hasalsobeeninjuriousto humanhealthbecauseit hasbeen

inhaledby personsin andneartheProperty. FTC’s emissionofusedoil thus falls within the

scopeoftheterm,“air pollution,” asdefinedby theAct.

74. BecauseFTC tendedto cause,anddid cause,air pollution at theProperty,FIC violated

theprohibition in 415 ILCS 5/9(a).

Prayer for Relief: Count VIII

WHEREFORE,Complainant Mate respectfully requests that this Board grant the

following relief:

A. Find thatRespondentFTC hasviolated415 ILCS 5/9(a);

B. Order the Respondent to cease and desist from further violation of the Act and

associatedregulations;
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C. Order the Respondent to remediate the Property and lawfully remove all us~doil

from any and all areas in or on which it has been improperly discharged or emitted by virtue of

FIC’s violation of 415 TLCS 5/9(a).

D. Award Complainant all costs it has incurred in investigating the effects of FIC’s

wastehandlingpractices. (Forpurposesofthis Citizens’ Complaintonly, suchcostsarenot

intended to include attorneys’ fees.)

E. AssessagainsttheRespondentamonetarypenaltyofup to fifty thousanddollars

($50,000)for eachviolation of 415 ILCS 5/9(a),andup to an additionaltenthousanddollars

($10,000)for eachday thattheviolation hascontinued.

F. Grant such other and further relief as this Board deems appropriate

COUNT IX
(Violation of 415 ILCS 5/21(e):Statutory Prohibition ofWater Pollution)

75. MatereallegesParagraphs1 through13, above,asif fully set forth in thisCountIX.

76. TheAct states,in pertinentpart,asfollows:

No personshall:

(a) Causeor threatenor allow thedischargeofanycontaminantsinto theenvironmentin
any Statesoasto causeor tendto causewaterpollution in Illinois, eitheraloneor in
combination with matter from other sources, or so as to violate regulations or standards
adopted by the Pollution Control Board under this Act.

415 TLCS 5/12(a).

77. MatereallegesParagraph72,asif fully set forth in this CountIX.

78. TheAct defines“waterpollution” as“suchalterationofthephysical,thermal,chemical,

biological or radioactivepropertiesofany watersofthe State,or suchdischargeofany
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contaminantintoanywatersoftheState,aswill or is likely to createanuisanceor rendersuch

watersharmfulordetrimentalor injuriousto public health,safetyor welfare,or to domestic,

commercial,industrial,agricultural,recreational,orotherlegitimateuses,or to livestockwild

animals,birds, fish, orotheraquaticlife.” 415TLCS 5/3.55.

79. Thestormsewerson thePropertyleadto SpringbrookCreek,whichrunsthroughItasca,

Illinois, andsubsequently,to SaltCreek,which is alsopartlyorwholly in Illinois. TheAct

defines“waters”as“all accumulationsofwater,surfaceandunderground,natural,andartificial,

public andprivate,or partsthereof,which arewholly orpartiallywithin, flow through,orborder

uponthis State.” 415 TLCS 5/3.56. SpringbrookCreekandSaltCreekarethuswithin thescope

of”watersofthe State”asusedin theAct.

80. On informationandbelief, by dischargingoil wastesinto thestormsewersleadingto

SpringbrookCreek,FTC alteredthephysicalandchemicalpropertiesofSpringbrookCreekin

suchmanneraswaslikely to createanuisanceandrendersuchwatersharmful,detrimental,and

injuriousto public health,safetyandwelfare,‘and to commercialandotherlegitimateuses.

81. By wantonly andintentionallydischargingoil into thestormsewerat theProperty,and

thusinto SpringbrookCreek,FTC hascaused,threatenedandallowedthedischargeof

contaminantssoasto causeandtendto causewaterpollution in Illinois.

82. Illinois regulationsprohibit thedischargeof any contaminantinto thewatersoftheSate

from apoint sourceexceptin compliancewith apermitissuedundertheNationalPollutant

DischargeEliminationSystem(“NPDES”). §309.102.

83. TheIllinois regulationsadoptthedefinitionsof thefederalCleanWaterAct with respect

to termsrelatingto NPDES. §301.325. “Point source”is sucha term,andis definedas“any
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discernible,confined,anddiscreteconveyance,includingbutnot limited to,anypipe,ditch,

channel,tunnel,conduit, well, discretefissure,container,rolling stock,concentratedanimal

feedingoperation,landfill leachatecollectionsystem,vesselorotherfloating craftfrom which

pollutants are or may be discharged. 40 CFR§ 122.2. Theterm, “pollutant” includessolidwaste

and industrial waste. 40 CFR§ 122.2.

84. Theoil generatedby FTC’s industrialprocessesis solidwasteandindustrialwaste,and

thus a “pollutant.” Further, the storm sewer is a discrete conveyance from which pollutants are

discharged, in this case to Spring Lake. Thereforç, the storm sewer on the Property is a point

source within the meaning of 40 CFR§ 122.2.

85. On informationandbelief, FTC did not obtainanNPDESpermit for thedischargeof its

oil wastes via the storm sewer on the Property.

86. Dischargepermit ILR005471wasissuedfor theProperty. Thatpermit allowssolely

dischargesof “storm water,” which it defines as “water runoff, snow melt runoff, andsurface

runoff and drainage.” The oil waste that FTC caused to be discharged to the storm sewer was not

stormwater,andthereforesuchdischarge(s)werenotauthorizedby discharge-permit

TLR005471.

87. Therefore,FTC violatedtheprohibitionof415TLCS 5/12(a)becauseit caused,threatened

andallowedthedischargeof contaminantsinto theenvironmentso asto causeor tendto cause

water pollution in Illinois, and because it violated §309.102 by discharging contaminants in

absenceof anNPDESpermit.

Prayer for Relief: Count IX

WHEREFORE,ComplainantMaterespectfullyrequeststhatthis Boardgrantthe
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following relief:

A. Find thatRespondentFTC hasviolated 415 ILCS 5/12(a);

B. Order the Respondent to cease and desist from further violation of the Act and

associatedregulations;

C. OrdertheRespondentto remediatethePropertyandlawfully removeall usedoil

from anyandall areasin oronwhich it hasbeenimproperlydischargedby virtue ofFTC’s

violationof415 ILCS 5/12(a);

D. Award Complainantall costsit hasincurredin investigatingthe effectsofFTC’s

wastehandlingpractices.(Forpurposesofthis Citizens’ Complaintonly, suchcostsarenot

intendedto includeattorneys’fees.)

E. AssessagainsttheRespondentamonetarypenaltyofup to tenthousanddollars

for eachday of violation of 415 TLCS 5/12(a).

F. Grantsuchotherandfurtherreliefasthis Boarddeemsappropriate

Respectfullysubmitted,

MATE TECHNOLOGIES,INC.

CareyS. Rosemarin,Esq. (Atty. No. 6181911)
Law OfficesofCareyS.Rosemarin,P.C.
500 SkokieBoulevard,Suite510
Northbrook,TL 60062
847-897-8000
312-896-5786(fax)

By:
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, Carey S. Rosemarin, an attorney, hereby certif~,’ that I caused a copy of the

foregoing Notice of Filing and Complaint to be served upon the parties listed on the Service List

below, by depositing same with Federal Express on October 23, 2003.

/
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L ffices of Carey S. Rosemarin, P.C.

0 SkokieBoulevard,Suite510
Northbrook,IL 60062
847-897-8000
312-896-5786(Fax)
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